
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

FYEO9 BUDGET 

PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING 
SEPTEMBER 2,2008 



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
FYE 09 BUDGET 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

A. Executive Summary 
Executive Summary 
Superintendent's FYEO9 Budget Recommendations 
Published Budget Summary 
Program Description Forms 

B. General Fund 
General Fund Budget Summary 

C. Special Building Fund 
Special Building Fund Budget Summary 

D. Bond Fund 
Bond Fund Budget Summary 
Outstanding Debt Summary 

E. Non-Tax Levy Funds 
Food Service Fund Budget Summary 
Depreciation Fund Budget Summary 
Employee Benefit Fund Budget Summary 
Activity Fund Budget Summary 
Student Fee Fund Budget Summary 

F. Supplemental Information 
Student Enrollment & Total Expenditures Graphs 
Assessed Value & Valuation Increases Graphs 
Tax Levy by Fund & Cash Reserve Graphs 
Valuation History 
Tax Levy History 
Calculation of Levies 



Section A 

Executive Summary 



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



Section B 

General Fund 



23



Section C 

Special Building 
Fund 



24



Section D 

Bond Fund 



25



26



Section E 

Non-Tax Levy 
Funds 



27



28



29



30



31



Section F 

Supplemental 
Information 



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39





















BOARD OF EDUCATION
MEETING

  

  

SEPTEMBER 2, 2008

1



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BOARD MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147th STREET

SEPTEMBER 2, 2008

5:00 P.M. Public Hearing on 2008-2009 Budget

AGENDA
A. Call to Order

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and
comments on agenda items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board
President before the meeting begins.

E. Routine Matter
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – August 11, 2008
2. *Approval of Special Board of Education Meeting Minutes – August 18, 2008
3. *Approval of Bills
4. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File
5. Summary Committee of the Whole Meeting – August 18, 2008

F. Information Items
1. Superintendent’s Comments
2. Board Comments/Announcement
3. Reports from Student Representatives

G. Unfinished Business:
1. Approval of Policy 3131 – Support Services – Employee Travel and Reimbursement
2. Approval of Policy 5490 – Pupil Services – Use of Alcohol and other Drug Testing

Technology

H. New Business:
1. Approval of Rule 5490.1 – Pupil Services – Use of Alcohol and other Drug Testing

Technology
2. First Reading of Policy 6610 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Multicultural

Education
3. Approval of Emergency Medical Team (EMT) Service at Non-Varsity High School and

Middle School Football Games
4. Approval of Q” Street Widening Project Easements & Deeds
5. Approval of Personnel Actions: Amendment to a Continuing Contract, Resignation,

and New Hires

2



Agenda
September 2, 2008
Page 2

I. Reports
1. Enrollment Report
2. Career Compensation Model
3. ACT and SAT Results 2007-2008
4. State Writing Assessment Results 2007-2008

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, September 8, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
2. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, September 15, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
3. North Central Accreditation Exit Report, on Thursday, September 25, 2008 at 1:00 p.m. at the

Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, October 6, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
5. NFUSSD Conference on October 12-15, 2008 at the Duval County Public Schools in

Jacksonville, FL
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, October 20, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 3, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
8. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, November 10, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
9. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 17, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
10. NASB Education Conference on November 19-21, 2008 at the Embassy Suites in LaVista, NE,

12520 Westport Parkway
11. Board Member Learning Community caucus on Thursday, November 20, 2008 at 6:00 p.m. at

ESU #3

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in
a single motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board
member.

3



.BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BUSINESS MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET

SEPTEMBER 2, 2008
5:00 P.M. Public Hearing on 2008-2009 Budget

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM
A. Call to Order

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on
agenda items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the
Meeting.

*E.1. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education
Minutes – August 11, 2008 (See enclosure.)

*E.2. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Special Board of
Education Minutes – August 18, 2008 (See enclosure.)

*E.3. Motion by , seconded by , to approve the bills.

*E.4. Motion by , seconded by , to receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place
on File. (See enclosure.)

E.5. Summary Committee of the Whole Meeting – August 18, 2008

F.1. Superintendent’s Comments

F.2. Board Comments/Announcements

F.3. Reports from Student Representatives

G.1. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, to approve Policy 3131 – Support
Services – Employee Travel and Reimbursement. (See enclosure.)

G.2. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, to approve Policy 5490 – Pupil Services
– Use of Alcohol and other Drug Testing Technology. (See enclosure.)

H.1. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, to approve Rule 5490.1 – Pupil
Services – Use of Alcohol and other Drug Testing Technology. (See enclosure.)

H.2. First Reading of Policy 6610 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Multicultural
Education. (See enclosure.).

4



Administrative Memorandum
September 2, 2008
Page 2

H.3. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, to approve the recommendation of the
district’s Medical Advisory Committee that all coaches be provided training in CPR, AED, and
first aid training if it survives the program budgeting process for 2009-2010, and that the district
not contract with any organization that could provide EMT coverage at non-varsity football
games during 2008-2009. (See enclosure.)

H.4. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, that the proposed Temporary Construction
Easement and the Warranty Deed related to Project C-28(337) Tract 15 as well as the Temporary
Construction Easement and the Warranty Deed related to Project C-28(337) Tract 25 from the District to
Douglas County be approved as submitted. (See enclosure.)

H.5. Motion by _____________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Actions:
Amendment to a Continuing Contract, Resignation, and New Hires. (See enclosures.)

I. Report
1. Enrollment Report
2. Career Compensation Model
3. ACT and SAT Results for 2007-2008
4. State Writing Assessment Results 2007-2008

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar.
1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, September 8, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
2. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, September 15, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
3. North Central Accreditation Exit Report, on Thursday, September 25, 2008 at 1:00 p.m. at the Don

Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, October 6, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
5. NFUSSD Conference on October 12-15, 2008 at the Duval County Public Schools in Jacksonville, FL
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, October 20, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 3, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
8. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, November 10, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
9. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, November 17, 2008 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
10. NASB Education Conference on November 19-21, 2008 at the Embassy Suites in LaVista, NE, 12520

Westport Parkway
11. Board Member Learning Community caucus on Thursday, November 20, 2008 at 6:00 p.m. at ESU #3

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic. Please
make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single
motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.

5



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 17

A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of Douglas in the
State of Nebraska. This meeting was convened in open and public session at 7:00 p.m., Monday, August 11,
2008, at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.

PRESENT: Brad Burwell, Jean Stothert, Mike Kennedy, Mike Pate, Dave Anderson and, Linda Poole

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on, August 8, 2008; a
copy of the publication is being attached to these minutes. Notice of this meeting was given to all members of
the Board of Education and a copy of their Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached
to these minutes. Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board
of Education of this meeting. All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was
open to the attendance of the public.
--------------------------------------------------------------------------

At 7:00 p.m. Jean Stothert announced the Public meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public
inspection. Mrs. Stothert asked everyone to say the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll call was taken and all members were present.

Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Brad Burwell, to approve the Board of Education minutes of July 7,
2008, to approve the bills, and receive the Treasurer’s Report and place on file. Upon roll call vote, all
members voted aye. Motion carried.

Superintendent’s Comments:

1. Dr. Lutz thanked the board members for attending the Fall Kick-Off celebration on Friday, August 8,
2008.

2. Next week’s Committee meeting agenda will include discussion on the Learning Community and a
budget update.

3. There will be a budget hearing on Tuesday, September 2, 2008 at 5:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh
Administration Center prior to the board meeting. Approval of the budget will be on the agenda for the
September 15th board meeting.

4. The student representatives will start attending the board meeting on Tuesday, September 2, 2008.
5. School starts on Wednesday, and most of the elementaries are having their open houses, and are busy

getting ready for the over 22,000 students this year. Everyone please drive safely.

Board Comments:

Mike Pate announced the opening of the new Millard Public Schools Foundation office and preschool. He
invited everyone to visit the new facility.

Linda Poole thanked the parents and students who participated in the 30 hours of Strategic Planning session last
week.

Mrs. Poole welcomed back the teachers, and the students.

6



Board of Education Minutes
August 11, 2008
Page 2

Brad Burwell said he visited with Charlene Snyder and suggested special education be highlighted at the
November committee meeting.

Mr. Burwell said he attended a meeting on July 25th in regards to the Omaha Down Syndrome Network. The
concept of the meeting was to make a better connection with the area schools in Omaha. Mrs. Snyder is
familiar with this organization and can also report on it at the committee meeting in November.

Mr. Burwell announced that due to other obligations he will not be at the September 2, 2008 board meeting.

Dave Anderson thanked the administrator, teachers, parents and students for participating in Strategic Planning.

Mr. Anderson said he attended the new teacher breakfast, and thanked Kim Saum-Mills for her organization of
the event, and the assimilation of the new staff members into the Millard family.

Mr. Anderson also thanked Dr. Lutz, Amy Friedman, and Angelo Passarelli for the Fall Kick-Off, which
featured Erin Gruwell as the speaker. Mr. Anderson said he enjoyed the morning and meeting Ms. Gruwell.

Mike Kennedy said he agreed with the statements made by Mr. Anderson. He said he received some thank
you’s from several teachers for not going back to the Holiday Inn.

Jean Stothert said the Fall Kick-Off went off just great.

Mrs. Stothert said the Metropolitan Area Boards of Education will have a meeting this Wednesday, and all
members will be attending. The topics for discussion are the superintendent’s evaluation, and the self-
evaluation of board members. She said she would share the information from the M.A.B.E. meeting.

Mike Pate provided the first reading Policy 3131 – Support Services – Employee Travel and Reimbursement.
This policy will be on the next board agenda for approval.

Motion by Brad Burwell, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the PreK-12 Language Arts Field Study, upon
roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Linda Poole provided the first reading of Policy 5490 – Pupil Services – Use of Alcohol and other Drug Testing
Technology. This policy will be on the next board agenda for approval.

Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Brad Burwell, to reaffirm Policy 4126 – Human Resources – Job
Qualification, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Brad Burwell, seconded by Dave Anderson, to affirm Policy 4150 – Human Resources – Freedom of
Speech, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Brad Burwell, to approve Rule 4510.6 – Human Resources – Family
and Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”), upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Dave Anderson, to approve Personnel Actions: Amendment to
Continuing Contracts: Denise Caniglia, Lisa Masid Scheppers, Sherri Buford, Julia Shipp, Sharon Gerhardt,
Gwen Stahmer; Rescission of Leave of Absence: Lisa Masid Scheppers; Resignations: Vicki Hunt, Catalina

7







Millard Public Schools
September 2, 2008

10



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  September 2, 2008

Date: 8/27/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
LA VISTA ES CATERING CO INC136938293478 24,869.20 
BEST WESTERN REDONDO BEACH INN136830293480 476.00 
BRAD BURWELL106110293482 64.22 
CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS133970293483 3,753.00 
ERIK P CHAUSSEE132271293484 751.05 
COMMONWEALTH ELECTRIC130646293486 5,318.00 
JAY R DOSTAL135650293488 751.05 
TED H ESSER109066293489 751.05 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK VISA106773293490 6,742.93 
VICKI  K GRIFFIN133082293491 30.69 
BAILEY HEMPHILL135616293492 145.00 
ROBERT J HETTINGER134455293493 48.22 
MAHONEY STATE PARK065541293494 57.00 
SUSAN N MARLATT133505293495 751.05 
ANGELA R MERCIER017611293496 199.25 
MITCHELL S MOLLRING136388293497 751.05 
PETTY CASH/CENTRAL MIDDLE071371293501 73.10 
SHEILA M PHELPS072382293502 8.56 
HEATHER C PHIPPS133390293503 751.05 
JEAN STOTHERT106606293505 127.29 
BRAD D SULLIVAN109822293506 751.05 
JAMES V SUTFIN084959293507 129.65 
GREGORY E TIEMANN132493293508 751.05 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446293509 91.00 
AC AWARDS INC131632293520 150.00 
ACCOUNTEMPS130729293521 563.50 
AKSARBEN PIPE & SEWER CLEANING LLC133620293522 1,187.50 
ALL MAKES OFFICE EQUIPMENT011051293523 2,858.92 
ALPINE KILNS & EQUIPMENT LLC136400293524 742.30 
AMI GROUP INC102430293525 1,090.00 
AMSAN LLC069689293526 2,242.38 
AFO LLC134757293527 346.65 
JEWISH FEDERATION OF OMAHA INC134875293529 500.00 
MERRILL COMPANY108092293530 129.54 
AQUA-CHEM INC106436293531 319.00 
ATS MOBILE TELEPHONE CO INC010083293532 141.00 
AUTO STATION102237293533 1,220.29 
AVATECH SOLUTIONS INC067004293534 9,589.00 
B G PETERSON COMPANY072250293535 130.00 
BAKER DISTRIBUTING CO LLC135991293536 65.63 
BALCON017670293537 262.50 
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646293538 142.11 
BARNES DISTRIBUTION132608293539 97.92 
LORI A BARTELS107979293540 13.54 
BEATRICE STATE DEVELOPMENTAL CENTER132701293542 11,550.80 
COLLEEN K BECKWITH134069293543 84.45 

11



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  September 2, 2008

Date: 8/27/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
BLACK & DECKER US INC133364293545 51.90 
SARA L BONN136944293546 170.73 
KIMBERLIE A BUHR133042293547 5.00 
BUSINESS MEDIA INC099431293549 419.00 
PIONEER LOCK CO INC054237293550 159.12 
CURTIS R CASE131158293551 186.33 
CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS133970293552 2,502.00 
CD PUBLICATIONS131001293553 457.00 
CHARTHOUSE LEARNING131024293554 1,215.19 
ERIK P CHAUSSEE132271293555 37.30 
CHILDREN'S HOME HEALTHCARE106851293556 16,986.39 
CITY OF OMAHA025197293558 98,576.26 
COMMONWEALTH ELECTRIC130646293559 1,842.00 
COMPUTYPE INC136791293561 799.20 
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CTRS OF NE PC135082293562 364.00 
CONOCOPHILLIPS133617293563 6,359.55 
CORMACI CONSTRUCTION INC132170293565 1,728.89 
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC108436293566 42,309.35 
CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING106893293568 56.26 
DAILY RECORD131003293570 29.35 
DARDEN-GLOEB-REEDER, INC.134768293571 1,553.00 
DEEP ROCK WATER130339293572 10.86 
DEFFENBAUGH INDUSTRIES107469293574 3,632.59 
DELTA PREMIUM SUPPLIES INC136940293575 227.09 
DENNIS SUPPLY COMPANY032872293576 2,028.37 
DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC033473293577 8,647.85 
DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC132669293578 198.38 
DRAMATIC PUBLISHING099628293580 389.58 
DRUMMOND AMERICAN CORPORATION034109293581 540.80 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525293584 11.50 
ELECTRIC FIXTURE & SUPPLY038100293585 1,086.16 
WARREN K ELTISTE038217293586 729.60 
ROBERT N WARREN/POWER PLAY LLC136935293587 17,348.00 
ETA/CUISENAIRE035610293588 881.91 
ALICIA C FEIST131826293589 212.00 
MARK W FELDHAUSEN040470293590 228.21 
FERRELLGAS106956293591 33.66 
FILTER SHOP INC133919293592 474.99 
BETH L FINK132001293593 134.50 
FOLLETT LIBRARY RESOURCES041100293594 4,698.50 
FOLLETT SOFTWARE COMPANY136106293595 30,000.00 
KENNETH J FOSSEN041146293596 253.75 
AMY J FRIEDMAN041543293597 85.90 
GLASSMASTERS INC106660293599 266.81 
KAREN GOUGHNOUR133570293601 252.72 
GP DIRECT043609293602 897.45 

12



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  September 2, 2008

Date: 8/27/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY044950293603 116.85 
HARRY S GRIMMINGER130083293604 219.38 
GUSTAVE A LARSON COMPANY132938293605 54.07 
CAROLYN A HANKE130085293606 63.31 
JAMES R HANLON136805293607 212.00 
HARRY A KOCH COMPANY056820293609 67,173.00 
ELAINE HILL134441293612 283.39 
HMS BROWN BAGGERS045329293613 71.85 
HOUGHTON MIFFLIN COMPANY049650293614 1,546.60 
HY-VEE INC049850293615 23.02 
JENSEN TIRE COMPANY133037293617 9,321.17 
JOHNSON HARDWARE COMPANY054500293618 22.49 
NANCY A JOHNSTON059573293619 41.67 
JOHNSTONE SUPPLY054630293620 180.00 
RICHARD L KOLOWSKI056913293622 204.75 
JOHN M KUHRY133997293624 5.00 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755293625 87.80 
LIEN TERMITE & PEST CONTROL INC059470293627 191.00 
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC131397293628 333.41 
LEANNA MACDONALD108106293631 674.44 
ALEXANDER REED INC136925293633 576.06 
DAWN M MARTEN133201293634 0.00 
MAX I WALKER108052293635 448.00 
CLIFFORD W MCCLEAN136945293636 5.00 
METAL DOORS & HARDWARE COMPANY INC064600293638 2,180.00 
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK133403293639 903.60 
MIDLAND COMPUTER INC102870293640 722.33 
MIDWEST METAL WORKS INC064950293641 26.25 
MIDWEST TURF & IRRIGATION INC065233293642 112.61 
MILLARD LUMBER INC065400293643 10.44 
MILLARD METAL SERVICES INC.107560293644 95.00 
SHARRON A MILLSAP065709293645 91.76 
MINNESOTA CLAY CO099352293646 36.29 
MODERN METHODS INC065891293647 10,800.00 
MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO063150293648 257.48 
MURPHY TRACTOR & EQUIPMENT CO133712293649 80.94 
MUSIC IN MOTION INC066580293650 207.49 
NEBRASKA AIR FILTER INC068334293651 1,358.18 
NEBRASKA SAFETY CENTER134231293652 125.00 
NOVA HEALTH EQUIPMENT COMPANY069930293655 199.90 
NUTS & BOLTS INC069945293656 12.80 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013293657 14.70 
OH-K FAST PRINT107192293658 1,459.06 
OMAHA TRACTOR, INCORPORATED071024293659 21.48 
VIDEO MEDIA PRODUCTONS LLC071027293660 373.50 
OPEN HANDS OMAHA INC135617293661 650.00 

13



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  September 2, 2008

Date: 8/27/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY107193293662 557.60 
PAINTIN PLACE CERAMICS INC071515293663 600.00 
PARKING AREA MAINTENANCE INC136277293664 3,382.00 
ANGELO D PASSARELLI108098293665 103.00 
TYLER J PEARSON131646293666 318.12 
PEARSON EDUCATION082652293667 1,206.70 
PENGUIN GROUP USA INC072113293668 192.32 
MARY JO PENNY136941293669 5.00 
MARY J PILLE130721293671 212.00 
PRAIRIE MECHANICAL CORP131835293672 370.88 
PREMIER AGENDAS INC072349293673 997.66 
PROGRESS PUBLICATIONS073610293674 483.75 
CHRISTOPHER J RAMEY136908293676 114.46 
JENNIFER L REID134858293678 50.61 
KIMBERLI R RICE109192293679 212.00 
ROSENBAUM ELECTRIC INC079440293681 1,009.83 
SAFETY KLEEN SYSTEMS INC101101293682 116.00 
SCHOLASTIC MAGAZINES082140293686 6,620.21 
SCHOOL HEALTH CORPORATION082200293687 8,812.81 
SECURITY EQUIPMENT INC082910293688 3,128.43 
SIEMENS BUILDING TECHNOLOGIES INC.131887293690 51,056.10 
SIMPLEXGRINNELL083400293691 302.00 
LYON FINANCIAL SERVICES130722293692 2,760.65 
JANICE D SORENSEN135408293693 71.37 
SOUTH OMAHA TERMINAL WAREHOUSE CO084081293694 286.10 
SOUTHEAST COMMUNITY COLLEGE135961293695 99.00 
HOLLY STEIDLMAYA133065293696 177.76 
SUNDERLAND BROTHERS COMPANY084907293698 6.66 
JAMES V SUTFIN084959293699 79.59 
TERRY HUGHES TREE SERVICE049700293700 160.00 
TEXAS INSTRUMENTS COMPANY088920293701 450.00 
LAURIE R THROCKMORTON134962293703 35.00 
TY'S OUTDOOR POWER & SERVICE INC135505293704 491.61 
UNISOURCE090678293706 1,549.54 
UNITED ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO INC090214293707 549.57 
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE090242293709 110.19 
UNITED RENTALS INC134849293710 517.71 
VAL LTD091040293712 591.50 
CONNIE L VLCEK109122293713 12.99 
WALKER TIRE INC092834293714 319.58 
WATER ENGINEERING, INC.093765293715 2,710.20 
WENGER CORPORATION094130293716 4,272.50 
WESTLAKE ACE HARDWARE INC094245293718 343.39 
CRAIG WHALEY134658293719 308.60 
WIESE EQUIPMENT LLC136698293720 130.00 
WIESE RESEARCH ASSOCIATES INC.019459293721 11,100.00 

14



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  September 2, 2008

Date: 8/27/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
CHRISTY WILLIAMS136942293722 5.00 
YOUNG & WHITE096200293724 31,577.56 
SECURITY BENEFIT LIFE INS CO098765293725 147,439.78 
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646293726 13,519.13 
JIMERIK ENTERPRISES INC136950293727 39.99 
KATHERINE A GRAY044965293732 90.18 
LINDA D HORTON095520293733 28.43 
KARA L HUTTON130283293734 40.00 
HY-VEE INC049851293735 27.86 
HY-VEE INC049850293736 101.07 
THERESA M JENSEN132617293737 24.30 
MITCHELL S MOLLRING136388293739 771.95 
PHILIP D NORDNESS136948293741 250.00 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013293742 62.97 
MAUREEN R PREBLE107910293743 14.53 
KELLY M SELTING082941293744 141.27 
CS & M ASSOCIATES136949293745 481.38 
CHARLENE S SNYDER107093293747 14.00 
JOHN D SOUTHWORTH131714293748 1,091.53 
MIRIAM R TREDWAY133826293749 616.46 
VAL LTD091040293750 91.00 
AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOCIATION012050293753 2,016.46 
AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOCIATION106998293754 500.00 
AMSAN LLC069689293755 10,942.47 
ASI MODULEX013226293757 420.00 
RAYMOND J SAVARD136956293759 2,500.00 
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646293760 5,730.49 
BEST BUY018800293761 149.97 
BOOKWORM101364293762 498.04 
PARK UNIVERSITY ENTERPRISES INC023923293765 195.00 
CLOVERDALE MANUFACTURING CO136099293769 65.20 
COMMONWEALTH ELECTRIC130646293770 1,536.00 
CONNECTIVITY SOLUTIONS MFG INC133818293771 1,311.41 
JEAN T DAIGLE-ROSE132671293773 672.81 
DARDEN-GLOEB-REEDER, INC.134768293774 160.00 
DIGITAL EXPRESS INC136179293777 4,460.00 
DKAH SERVICES CORP135933293778 25.00 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525293780 25.00 
RON CAMILLO CORP136952293781 214.90 
FOLLETT LIBRARY RESOURCES041100293784 933.37 
FREE SPIRIT PUBLISHING INC041463293785 10.95 
HARCOURT INC047855293787 253.00 
HOUGHTON MIFFLIN COMPANY049650293790 60,160.50 
INDEPENDENT SYSTEMS INC108348293791 64.00 
INSTITUTE FOR SUPPLY MANAGEMENT INC135073293793 118.45 
INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE102451293794 1,190.00 

15



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  September 2, 2008

Date: 8/27/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
IRONWOOD GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB134109293795 6,467.12 
J.W. PEPPER & SON INC.100928293796 77.89 
KOHLL'S PHARMACY & HOMECARE INC106582293797 256.80 
KUBAT PHARMACY/HEALTHCARE133923293799 1,470.00 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755293801 144,306.98 
LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS099217293802 1,574.18 
LEVENSONS INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY INC134023293804 27.45 
LUCKS MUSIC LIBRARY INC060125293805 21.75 
LYMM CONSTRUCTION CO.131586293806 3,765.00 
LYNX SYSTEM DEVELOPERS INC136461293807 80.00 
MIDLAND COMPUTER INC102870293810 1,041.54 
MIDWEST STORAGE SOLUTIONS131899293811 1,977.60 
MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY131328293812 6,374.00 
SUZANNE MUELLER135332293814 105.45 
NATIONAL ART EDUCATION ASSOC067085293815 244.20 
NATIONAL FEDERATION URBAN SCHOOL131192293816 1,500.00 
NEBRASKA EDUCATIONAL TECH ASSN100216293817 115.00 
UNIV OF NEBRASKA MEDICAL CENTER132711293819 2,000.00 
BRIAN L NELSON107732293820 312.50 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC109843293821 755.76 
NOVA HEALTH EQUIPMENT COMPANY069930293822 110.00 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013293823 1,851.97 
WARFIELD PCI LIMITED071353293825 99.90 
PEARSON EDUCATION102699293826 10,501.94 
PEARSON EDUCATION109027293827 0.00 
PEARSON EDUCATION082652293828 3,846.21 
PROGRESS PUBLICATIONS073610293830 378.00 
ROSENBAUM ELECTRIC INC079440293831 14,619.76 
RS STOVER COMPANY084660293832 3,306.00 
SKILLPATH SEMINARS083542293834 199.00 
SPORTIME084326293835 85.04 
STAHLS LETTERING INC100584293836 961.10 
JAMES E FRICK INC133300293837 635.75 
DRAPHIX, LLC103050293838 392.72 
TRITZ PLUMBING, INC.106493293839 185.34 
UNISOURCE090678293840 2,282.50 
UNITED EQUIPMENT SERVICES CO INC109861293841 6,185.00 
PEARSON EDUCATION082652293849 419.17 
PEGASUS TRAVEL CENTER010603293850 2,487.50 
ADVANCED OFFICE INTERIORS CORP102832293860 7,299.29 
ALLIED CONSTRUCTION SERVICES011180293862 1,780.00 
CBMC INC136974293866 200.00 
CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS133970293867 4,947.75 
COMMONWEALTH ELECTRIC130646293868 4,115.00 
WILLIAM DAUGHTRIDGE136517293871 1,679.53 
ANGELA M DIEHM133261293872 168.75 

16



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  September 2, 2008

Date: 8/27/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
EDUCATIONAL DESIGN SOLUTIONS LLC136548293873 1,253.30 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525293874 30,096.26 
FLORIDA LEAGUE OF IB SCHOOLS/FLIBS102708293876 680.00 
INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE102451293878 10,030.00 
BRIAN L NELSON107732293881 312.50 
PARKING AREA MAINTENANCE INC136277293882 810.00 
PEARSON EDUCATION082652293883 1,684.60 
PHI DELTA KAPPA072400293884 176.00 
PHI DELTA KAPPA072400293885 55.00 
RIFE CONSTRUCTION INC106416293886 968.00 
ROTARY CLUB OF MILLARD-OMAHA079450293888 275.00 
STEPHEN W. VENTEICHER107354293889 468.75 

1,117,826.86 Total for GENERAL FUND
FIRST NATIONAL BANK FOR CASH13154421305 4,170.00 
CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING10689321313 16.74 
DENNIS SUPPLY COMPANY03287221314 219.45 
ENCORE ONE LLC13598321315 159.72 
ROWAN W LANG10222921316 165.37 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOL CLEARING ACCT13627921317 757.90 
OFFICE DEPOT  8413351010001321318 24.99 
EDRIE K PEARCE10244521319 239.52 
JUDITH H SCHULTZ13135021320 44.17 
SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES10147621321 400,000.00 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOL CLEARING ACCT13627921322 4,771.80 

410,569.66 Total for FOOD SERVICE 
FUND

NEUVIRTH CONSTRUCTION INC136931293500 37,350.00 
SUSAN J ANGLEMYER130469293528 93.61 
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646293538 1,381.02 
BRET BASYE136939293541 96.49 
BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY133480293544 10,241.20 
BUSINESS INTERIORS GROUP133375293548 3,633.91 
CHILDRENS HEALTH MARKET INC106251293557 200.75 
COMPUTER CABLE CONNECTION INC025689293560 202.09 
CORMACI CONSTRUCTION INC132170293565 30,256.11 
CYC CONSTRUCTION INC134721293569 7,389.02 
DOSTALS CONSTRUCTION CO INC130648293579 2,216.60 
DURHAM MUSEUM094249293582 300.00 
E & A CONSULTING GROUP INC133806293583 17,482.50 
FROGS INC136186293598 0.00 
GOPHER/PLAY WITH A PURPOSE044891293600 239.22 
HARCOURT INC047855293608 379.84 
LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC058775293626 20,630.91 
MCGILL RESTORATION INC.133898293637 43,304.30 
NEW VISION COMUNICATIONS INC134798293654 199.96 
PEARSON EDUCATION082652293667 1,920.31 

17



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  September 2, 2008

Date: 8/27/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
PERFORMANCE ENGINEERING INC136568293670 1,633.64 
RAY MARTIN COMPANY132369293677 75,630.60 
ROOFING SOLUTIONS INC134824293680 52,000.00 
SCHEMMER ASSOCATES INC081880293684 973.27 
SHEPPARD'S BUSINESS INTERIORS083175293689 100.00 
THIELE GEOTECH INC108099293702 5,567.00 
UPSTART090973293711 7.95 
VAL LTD091040293712 115.98 
WESTERN TRAILER LEASING INC105619293717 325.00 
BUILDING COMMISSIONING LLC133503293728 1,000.00 
CARLEY CONSTRUCTION LLC134794293729 112,761.09 
CYC CONSTRUCTION INC134721293731 7,100.78 
SIGNEX INC102875293746 10.00 
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646293760 325.13 
ARR-BOONE BROTHERS ROOFING108047293763 51,592.50 
CHILDCRAFT EDUCATION CORP024652293766 51.74 
CHILDRENS HEALTH MARKET INC106251293767 401.50 
CONNECTIVITY SOLUTIONS MFG INC133818293771 13,463.49 
DARDEN-GLOEB-REEDER, INC.134768293774 19,610.00 
DOSTALS CONSTRUCTION CO INC130648293779 15,900.00 
ETA/CUISENAIRE035610293782 26.96 
GREAT AMERICAN HARDWOOD FLOORING136728293786 35,780.00 
HOOPER HEATING & COOLING LLC136799293789 23,900.00 
LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS099217293802 1,932.51 
LAWNSMITH & CO INC100732293803 1,220.00 
MCKINNIS ROOFING & SHEET METAL INC136147293809 68,599.00 
MIDWEST STORAGE SOLUTIONS131899293811 1,979.60 
PEARSON EDUCATION082652293828 1,752.46 
ROY EUGENE KIRK135412293833 2,650.00 
ALL MAKES OFFICE EQUIPMENT011051293861 3,769.50 
COMMUNICATION SERVICES INC.106902293869 3,340.00 
CYC CONSTRUCTION INC134721293870 4,731.30 
ELKHORN WEST CONSTRUCTION INC136211293875 25,830.00 
RIFE CONSTRUCTION INC106416293886 21,404.00 
RONCO CONSTRUCTION CO INC136676293887 316,228.50 
WEST MUSIC COMPANY094174293890 83.50 

1,049,314.84 Total for SPECIAL BUILDING 
FUND

UPLAND CONSTRUCTION CO106653293519 15,247.00 
ALL MAKES OFFICE EQUIPMENT011051293523 75.00 
BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY133480293544 4,479.77 
CONSTRUCT INC135287293564 264,389.40 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423293611 6,302.00 
KARCHER FLOOR CARE INC134194293621 1,598.70 
KONICA MINOLTA PRINTING SOLUTIONS134607293623 8,071.00 
MAGNUM RESOURCES INC134668293632 2,548.00 
TYCON ELECTRIC INC135716293705 295.00 

18



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  September 2, 2008

Date: 8/27/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
UNITED ENGINEERING INC136912293708 1,800.00 
WENGER CORPORATION094130293716 0.00 
UPLAND CONSTRUCTION CO106653293751 5,000.00 
THOMAS W TOGSFAD135602293752 2,860.00 
BUSINESS INTERIORS GROUP133375293764 12,743.26 
DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC132669293776 8,050.00 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423293788 557.73 
INDEPENDENT SYSTEMS INC108348293791 10,984.00 
INDOFF, INC.135502293792 7,932.57 
LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS099217293802 1,196.00 
MIDWEST STORAGE SOLUTIONS131899293811 32,942.34 
MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY131328293812 1,325.00 
UPLAND CONSTRUCTION CO106653293842 58,504.00 
WENGER CORPORATION094130293843 5,152.00 
ALL MAKES OFFICE EQUIPMENT011051293861 17,475.50 
COMMUNICATION SERVICES INC.106902293869 2,958.86 

472,487.13 Total for CONSTRUCTION 
FUND

JULIA M BENZEL135924293479 116.38 
BRYAN ELEMENTARY135036293481 325.00 
CODY ELEMENTARY135038293485 205.00 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK VISA106773293490 1,323.12 
DOREEN K NELSON134985293498 98.98 
HEIDI JO NEUMANN136004293499 38.47 
DIANE SCOTT136936293504 500.00 
JEAN R UBBELOHDE131819293510 283.32 
CRITICAL THINKING BOOKS & SOFTWARE026700293567 153.04 
IVERSON LANGUAGE ASSOCIATES INC136862293616 2,556.00 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755293625 2,700.96 
DIANE MACAITIS134140293630 105.92 
DOREEN K NELSON134985293653 59.95 
PRUFROCK PRESS INC073650293675 40.00 
PATRICIA A SCALISE131556293683 91.94 
SCHOLASTIC MAGAZINES082140293686 77.50 
DEBORAH L STONE136946293697 99.55 
MICHAELA WRAGGE136943293723 58.00 
COMPUTER SYSTEMS INC136947293730 175.00 
MARY ANN MAIER134602293738 776.54 
KOEHN INC136798293756 324.79 
CLASSROOM DIRECT099222293768 53.96 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525293780 30.00 
FATHER FLANAGANS BOYS HOME132699293783 175.00 
KRISTI J KOZAK055039293798 539.72 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755293801 2,591.88 
LAWNSMITH & CO INC100732293803 1,250.00 
MACKIN BOOK COMPANY099321293808 921.31 
NEBRASKA INTERNATL LANGUAGES ASSN136955293818 40.00 

19



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  September 2, 2008

Date: 8/27/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013293823 172.62 
PEARSON EDUCATION082652293828 11,312.34 
ROY EUGENE KIRK135412293833 2,500.00 
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646293863 394.11 
EDUCATIONAL DESIGN SOLUTIONS LLC136548293873 1,479.01 
OMAHA ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY101881293877 160.00 
LUCY KINCAID134508293879 175.00 
NEBRASKA SCIENTIFIC068684293880 331.00 

32,235.41 Total for GRANT FUND
COVENTRY HEALTH CARE OF NEBRASKA136587293487 112,691.39 
MUTUAL OF OMAHA COMPANIES099045293740 89,326.10 

202,017.49 Total for 
FOLLETT SOFTWARE COMPANY136106293595 171,464.70 
LYMM CONSTRUCTION CO.131586293629 71,455.00 
PARKING AREA MAINTENANCE INC136277293664 41,425.00 
DARDEN-GLOEB-REEDER, INC.134768293774 200.00 
INDEPENDENT SYSTEMS INC108348293791 896.00 
LYMM CONSTRUCTION CO.131586293806 9,925.00 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013293823 247.49 
PARKING AREA MAINTENANCE INC136277293824 1,323.00 
ROY EUGENE KIRK135412293833 500.00 
ADVANCED OFFICE INTERIORS CORP102832293860 355.37 

297,791.56 Total for DEPRECIATION 
FUND

COX COMMUNICATIONS INC108436293566 420.10 
DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC033473293577 14,594.88 
HAUFF SPORTING GOODS COMPANY048200293610 149.95 
ATLAS PEN & PENCIL CORPORATION100014293758 21.19 
CROUCH RECREATIONAL DESIGN INC134039293772 1,070.00 
DICK BLICK CO099220293775 2,416.64 
MORTON ELEMENTARY133370293813 210.93 
PREMIER AGENDAS INC072349293829 472.65 
ROY EUGENE KIRK135412293833 9,200.00 
ACCU CUT SERVICES LLC010298293859 220.00 
ADVANCED OFFICE INTERIORS CORP102832293860 360.00 
BLACK ELK ELEMENTARY135035293864 133.75 
AVRAHAM KADAR134129293865 235.00 
EDUCATIONAL DESIGN SOLUTIONS LLC136548293873 553.69 

30,058.78 Total for ACTIVITY FUND
ROY EUGENE KIRK135412293833 -594.00 

-594.00 Total for 

3,611,707.73 Report Total               

20





AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Approval of Board Policy: Support Services 3131

Meeting Date: September 2, 2008

Department Human Resources

Title and Brief
Description: Board Policy: Support Services 3131

Action Desired: Approval

Background: This Policy has been revised to make the language better fit the
accompanying rules.

Options/Alternatives
Considered: Leave unchanged, delete, or revise

Recommendations: Approval upon second reading

Strategic Plan
Reference: N/A

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N/A

Timeline: N/A

Responsible
Persons: Dr. Ken Fossen and Chad Meisgeier

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________________________

22

sphelps
Keith's signature



Support Services

Employees Expense and Travel Reimbursement 3131

Employees of the school district may be reimbursed for reasonable and necessary travel
costs and other expenses incurred in the performance of their duties for the District
including, but not limited to, travel costs and other expenses approved. Such
reimbursements shall be in accordance with the rules and/or administrative procedures
promulgated under this policy.

Date of Adoption: March 18, 2002

Date of Revision: August 18, 2008

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. §81−1176

23



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Pupil Services Policy and Rule

MEETING DATE: September 2, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Pupil Services

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Use of Alcohol and other Drug Testing
Technology.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The district has used breath testing devices
for several years to determine if a student is
under the influence of alcohol. The results
have been used only to exonerate the
student. Technology has improved allowing
schools to use drug detection aerosol sprays
which helps to determine if a student is
under the influence or in possession of
illegal drugs or paraphernalia.

OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE
CONSIDERATIONS: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approval

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: Strategy #7

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION
OR REJECTION: Adoption of the policy & rule will allow

administrators to use the latest in alcohol &
drug detection technology. Rejection will
preclude such usage.

TIMELINE:
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services

ASST. SUPERINTENDENT: ________________________________

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: _________________________________

24

sphelps
Keith's signature



Pupil Services

Use of Breath Testing Devices Alcohol and other Drug Testing Technology 5490

If When there is reasonable suspicion exists that a student has consumed or possesses alcohol or any other
type of drug in violation of District Policy, and the student has been will be advised of the suspicion. as to
the violation of and the disciplinary action being taken under the District's alcohol policy, upon request the
student may be permitted the opportunity to voluntarily take a test with a breath testing device. The test will
be administered by District personnel. The results of the test shall be used only to exonerate the student. As
part of the investigation, District personnel may conduct field tests using technology available to them for
determination of whether or not a student is under the influence, or in possession of alcohol or other drugs.

Related Rule: 5490.1
Date of Adoption: March 6, 1995
Date of Revision: August 19, 1996; October 16 2000; August 11, 2008 Millard Public Schools

Omaha, NE

25



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Pupil Services Policy and Rule

MEETING DATE: September 2, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Pupil Services

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Use of Alcohol and other Drug Testing
Technology.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The district has used breath testing devices
for several years to determine if a student is
under the influence of alcohol. The results
have been used only to exonerate the
student. Technology has improved allowing
schools to use drug detection aerosol sprays
which helps to determine if a student is
under the influence or in possession of
illegal drugs or paraphernalia.

OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE
CONSIDERATIONS: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approval

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: Strategy #7

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION
OR REJECTION: Adoption of the policy & rule will allow

administrators to use the latest in alcohol &
drug detection technology. Rejection will
preclude such usage.

TIMELINE:
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services

ASST. SUPERINTENDENT: ________________________________

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: _________________________________

26

sphelps
Keith's signature



Pupil Services
Use of Breath Testing Devices: Use of Breath Testing Devices
Alcohol and other Drug Testing Technology 5490.1

I. Procedures. The following procedures govern the use of breath testing devices alcohol and other drug
testing technology by school administrators:

A. Students who are suspected of violating the District's alcohol and other drugs policy who are referred to
the administration, and who deny the consumption of alcohol, even though the administration believes they
have reasonable suspicion that a student had imbibed an alcoholic beverage, may be offered the opportunity
to volunteer subjected to take a field test breath test. Refusal to consent or submit to a field test may be
grounds for discipline.

B. The results of the breath test will be used to provide the student an opportunity to exonerate
himself/herself.

B. If the student tests positive for alcohol and/or other drugs, the positive results will not be turned over to
any law enforcement agency, nor will the results be used as evidence for in any disciplinary procedures
against the student.

C. D. In the event a student tests positive for alcohol or refused to take the test, the administration will
make a disciplinary recommendation based on other evidence in the case. Results of field tests, refusal to
consent or submit to a field test, and other evidence will be used by the administration in determining
disciplinary action.

D. E. If a sStudent field test results negative for alcohol or other drugs, the student will not be subject to
disciplinary measures related to violation of the District's alcohol policy. In any event, the results of the
breath test will be made available to the student's parents or guardian.

E. F. Regardless of the results of the breath field test, the student will be released from school only to the
student's parents or guardian or an adult designated by the student's parents or guardian.

F. G. Staff, students, and parents will be notified annually of these procedures.

G. H. Breath Field test devices will only be administered by school administrators appropriately trained by
the Nebraska Department of Motor Vehicles as provided by the manufacturer of the field test devices.

H. I. Breath Field test devices will be tested for accuracy and calibrated as necessary as provided by the
manufacturer. provided by Nebraska Department of Motor Vehicles guidelines.

II. Annual Report to Board
A report summarizing breath test device utilization all field testing will be annually presented to the Board.

Related Policy: 5490
Date of Adoption: March 6, 1995
Date of Revision: August 19, 1996; October 16, 2000; August 11, 2008

27



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading of Policy 6610

MEETING DATE: September 2, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: First Reading of Policy 6610

Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment: Multicultural
Education Program

ACTION DESIRED: First reading

BACKGROUND: This is a revision to the Multicultural policy and rule that addresses
specific requirements found in Rule 10. The Statement of Philosophy is taken from the
original Multicultural Education Program plan submitted and approved by the Board of
Education on October 10, 1994. The remaining language is taken from Rule 10 and state
statute.

Nebraska Department of Education Rule 10 stipulates that “The instructional program in
public schools incorporates multicultural education in all curriculum areas at all grades.
Multicultural education includes, but is not limited to, studies relative to the culture, history,
and contributions of African Americans, Hispanic Americans, Native Americans, Asian
Americans and European Americans with special emphasis on human relations and
sensitivity toward all races.”

In addition, Rule 10 requires (sections 004.01G1 – 004.01G5) that:
 The district has a statement of philosophy or mission for the

multicultural education program. Local program goals address multicultural
education.

 The district curriculum guides, frameworks, or standards incorporate multicultural
education.

 The district multicultural education program includes a process for selecting
appropriate instructional materials.

 The district has a process for provision of staff development in multicultural
education including professional development for administrators, teachers, and
support staff which is congruent with local district and program goals.

 The district has a process for periodic assessment of the multicultural education
program. An annual status report is provided to the local board of education.

RECOMMENDATIONS: First Reading

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: None

28



TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Dr. Mark Feldhausen, Associate Superintendent for
Educational Services

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ______________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

29

sphelps
Keith's signature



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Multi-Cultural Multicultural Education 6610

The Millard Public Schools shall provide those programs which foster and develop an appreciation and
understanding of the racial, ethnic, language and cultural heritage of all groups which comprise the population of the
United States of America.

The programs shall be implemented within the guidelines provided by the State Department of Education and in
accordance with any other applicable laws or regulations.

The instructional program of the Millard Public Schools shall incorporate multicultural education in all curriculum
areas at all grades. Multicultural education includes, but is not limited to, studies relative to the culture, history, and
contributions of African Americans, Hispanic Americans, Native Americans, Asian Americans, and European
Americans with special emphasis on human relations and sensitivity toward all races.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-703, 79-719 to 79-723
Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 10, Section 004.01G

Related Policies & Rules: 6610.1

Policy Adopted: Millard Public Schools
Revised: November 2, 1992; April 27, 1998; July 26, 1999; Omaha, Nebraska

March 6, 2006; September 2, 2008

30



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Multi-Cultural Multicultural Education 6610.1

Implementation of the district Multi-Cultural Education Policy shall utilize:

I. Curriculum, including the selection of materials that will assist in avoiding bias and stereotyping;

II. Instruction, including those instructional strategies which will assist staff in providing equitable and
unbiased opportunities for students;

III. Inservice, including those learning opportunities for staff which will better enable them to understand a
multi-cultural approach and employ it in their teaching and administrative duties;

IV. Guidance and counseling services which promote understanding and appreciation of the racial, ethnic,
language and cultural background of others.

All organizational arrangements shall guard against any grouping of students which fosters or promotes racial,
ethnic, language or cultural bias.

The Multicultural Education Program shall comply with the requirements of Nebraska law and the accreditation rules
of the Nebraska Department of Education.

I. Statement of Philosophy

Multicultural Education is essential in meeting the mission of the Millard Public Schools.
Students will be provided with opportunities:

 to gain knowledge and appreciation of their own unique racial and ethnic heritage

 to gain knowledge, understanding and respect for the racial and ethnic diversity of our country, our
world and its peoples.

II. Program Parameter

A. The Multicultural Education Program shall be incorporated into the Millard Education Program, all
curriculum frameworks and course guides, and include a process for selecting appropriate instructional
materials, providing staff development, and periodic assessment of the program.

B. An annual report shall be provided the District Board of Education.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-703, 79-719 to 79-723
Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 10, Section 004.01G

Related Policies & Rules: 6610, 6100, 6120, 6120.1

Rule Approved: Millard Public Schools
Revised: November 2, 1992; April 27, 1998; July 26, 1999; March 6, 2006 Omaha, Nebraska

September 2, 2008

31



September 2, 2008

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Emergency Medical Team (EMT) Service at Non-Varsity High School and Middle School
Football Games

MEETING DATE: Tuesday, September 2, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Athletics and Activities

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Providing EMT Coverage at All Non-Varsity High School and Middle
School Football Games during the 2008 and 2009 Football Season.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval of Recommendation from the Medical Advisory Committee

BACKGROUND: A proposal was brought before the Board of Education in which EMT coverage at all
non-varsity high school and middle school football games would be provided by an organization equipped to
provide such service. The motion was tabled and we were directed to open the bidding again. The bid was
revised and sent to companies in the metro area equipped to provide EMT service, including one company that
was not contacted during the first bid because we were not aware of its existence. The second round of bids was
to be considered by the district’s Medical Advisory Committee, whose recommendation would be sent to the
Board of Education for consideration. This committee discussed the proposal during its regularly scheduled
meeting in April 2008.

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS: That all coaches be provided training in CPR, AED,
and first aid training as the budget would allow and that the district not contract with any organization that could
provide EMT coverage at football games.

RECOMMENDATIONS: The option previously mentioned was the recommendation of the district’s
Medical Advisory Committee. Implement this recommendation if it survives the program budgeting process and
eliminate our seeking EMT coverage at non-varsity high school and middle school games.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: EMT coverage would not be available at non-
varsity high school and middle school games at this time. Taking the recommendation of the Medical Advisory
Committee, we would take through program budgeting the proposal that all coaches at the middle and high
schools would receive first-aid training in addition to CPR and AED training. At this time the district has
approximately 395 coaching positions for which the training would apply. We would seek a reputable company
that could provide this training on our schedule at the lowest cost available to the district.

TIME LINE: The first aid training proposal will through program budgeting during the 2008-2009 school year for
possible implementation in August 2009.

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Craig Whaley, Director of Activities and Athletics

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ________________________________________

32

sphelps
Keith's signature



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: “Q” Street Widening Project Easements & Deeds

MEETING DATE: September 2, 2008

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: “Q” Street Widening Project Easements & Deeds – The temporary construction

easements and the warranty deeds related to the expansion of “Q” Street.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: “Q” Street from Russell Middle School to West High School is scheduled to be
widened soon (probably next summer). As part of the project, the County needs
temporary construction easements and some very small parcels of land from the
District. The easements and deeds related to such are attached. The prices for the
easements and deeds are established by a certified appraiser.

Tract 15 Easement $ 10,006
Tract 15 Deed (5,210 sq. ft.) 7,294
Tract 25 Easement 5,874
Tract 25 Deed (96 sq. ft.) 226

$ 23,400

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the proposed Temporary Construction Easement and the
Warranty Deed related to Project C-28(337) Tract 15 as well as the Temporary
Construction Easement and the Warranty Deed related to Project C-28(337) Tract
25 from the District to Douglas County be approved as submitted.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

33

sphelps
Keith's signature

































AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: September 2, 2008

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: Personnel items: (1) New Hires, (2) Resignation, (3)
Contract Amendment

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: NA

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION
OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________

49

sphelps
Keith's signature



September 2, 2008

AMENDMENT TO CONTINUING CONTRACTS

Recommend: amendment to the following contracts:

1. Larry Andrews – Art teacher at South High School for the 2008/2009 school year.
Amend contract from 57% to 50%.

50



September 2, 2008

RESIGNATIONS

Recommend: the following resignations be accepted:

1. David Tyler – PE at North High School. Resigned at the end of the 2007/2008 school
year for another job in education.

51



September 2, 2008

TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE

Recommend: the following teachers be hired for the 2008/2009 school year:

1. Nichole Butler – MA – Montana State University. Counselor (.4 FTE) at
Willowdale Elementary School and (.1 FTE) at Rohwer Elementary School.

2. Gail Hubbard – BA – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Second grade teacher at
Cather Elementary School.

52



August 20, 2008
Millard Public Schools

Total Enrollment
SpEd

Cluster Current YTD Official 9/07
Elementary K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment
Abbott (3 unit) 80 67 66 67 61 70 411 0 -3 414
Ackerman (4 unit) 101 97 81 84 96 92 551 0 -23 574
Aldrich (3 unit) 58 49 96 70 84 67 424 0 -1 425
Black Elk (3 unit) 83 88 96 83 97 91 538 0 -27 565
Bryan (3 unit) 68 73 60 60 57 63 381 0 2 379
Cather (3 unit) 75 78 73 72 66 67 431 0 15 416
Cody (2 unit) 32 34 40 31 29 27 18 211 0 -21 232
Cottonwood (3 unit) 57 57 56 58 68 50 346 0 5 341
Disney (3 unit) 48 45 44 32 53 31 12 265 0 -6 271
Ezra Millard (3 unit) 57 57 61 62 59 83 11 390 0 -6 396
Harvey Oaks (2 unit) 48 44 52 50 46 46 286 0 7 279
Hitchcock (2 unit) 21 25 28 24 24 35 18 175 0 -16 191
Holling Heights (3 unit) 61 64 61 70 65 57 11 389 0 -57 446
Montclair (4 unit) 87 86 93 94 68 100 528 0 -22 550
Morton (3 unit) 42 53 57 66 53 71 12 354 0 -11 365
Neihardt (4 unit) 80 101 105 105 74 86 551 0 -17 568
Norris (3 unit) 62 51 58 59 55 56 341 0 -1 342
Reagan (3 unit) 116 102 102 82 84 58 544 0 73 471
Reeder (3 unit) 61 89 72 76 64 59 15 436 0 60 376
Rockwell (3 unit) 51 49 52 45 46 33 20 296 0 -75 371
Rohwer (3 unit) 72 82 79 79 82 63 17 474 0 -27 501
Sandoz (3 unit) 51 55 52 55 47 54 314 0 4 310
Upchurch  (3 unit) 79 58 46 43 35 26 287 0 287 N/A
Wheeler (3 unit) 98 95 102 99 80 87 21 582 0 -1 583
Willowdale (3 unit) 52 70 69 85 65 75 416 0 -4 420
Totals 1640 1669 1701 1651 1558 1547 155 9921 0 135 9786

SpEd
6 7 8 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment6 7 8 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 248 270 240 11 758 0 -20 778
Beadle MS 296 298 239 29 833 0 45 788
Central MS 254 224 261 28 739 0 -11 750
Kiewit MS 299 293 334 5 926 0 15 911
North MS 246 244 240 13 730 0 13 717
Russell MS 280 291 281 8 852 0 0 852
MS Alternative 0 5 14 19 0 -3 22
Totals 1623 1625 1609 94 4857 0 39 4818

9 10 11 12
North HS 590 582 634 629 31 2435 0 -63 2498
South HS 521 527 496 545 19 2089 0 -18 2107
West HS 515 532 557 510 24 2114 0 -3 2117
Millard Learning Center 0 0 15 77 92 0 7 85
Totals 1626 1641 1702 1761 74 6730 0 -77 6807

Preschool Preschool SPED Contracted SPED 41 0 4 37
Cody Early Start 11 Cody 60 Young Adult Program 58 0 8 50
Norris 46 Disney 19
Sandoz ELL 53 Hitchcock 26 Total District K-12 21607 0 109 21498
Montessori - Montclair 82 Montclair 26 Total District PreK-12 22090 0 49 22041
Montessori - Norris 46 Reeder 31
Total 238 Sandoz 16 9/20/2007

Contracted 6 Elementary 9786
Infants 61 Middle Sch 4818
Total 245 High Sch 6807

Contracted 39
Young Adult 48
  Total 21498

8/18/2008
Elementary 9921
Middle Sch 4857
High Sch 6730
Contracted 41
Young Adult 58
  Total 21607

Current Chg 0
YTD Change 109

21,426 21,498 21,607

19,000

19,500

20,000

20,500

21,000

21,500

22,000

Aug 07 Sept 07 Aug 08

Enrollment 2008-09

53



Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class
Current YTD Official 9/07 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment SPED
Abbott 20 22 22 22 20 24

19 22 22 22 20 22
20 23 22 23 21 24
21

Total Students 80 67 66 67 61 70 411 -3 414 411
Total Teachers 4.0 3 3 3 3 3 19.0 19.0
Classroom Avg 20.0 22.3 22.0 22.3 20.3 23.3 22 22

Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Ackerman 20 19 20 20 24 24
20 19 20 21 24 23
20 18 20 22 24 23
20 21 21 21 24 22
21 20

Total Students 101 97 81 84 96 92 551 -23 574 551
Total Teachers 5.0 5 4 4 4 4 26.0 26.0
Classroom Avg 20.2 19.4 20.3 21.0 24.0 23.0 21 21

Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Aldrich 20 17 23 23 21 22
18 16 25 24 20 22
20 16 25 23 21 23

23 22
Total Students 58 49 96 70 84 67 424 -1 425 424
Total Teachers 3 3 4 3 4 3 20.00 20
Classroom Avg 19.3 16.3 24.0 23.3 21.0 22.3 21 21

Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Black Elk 21 21 23 21 20 23
20 23 25 21 20 22
20 22 23 21 20 23
22 22 25 20 18 23

19
Total Students 83 88 96 83 97 91 538 -27 565 538
Total Teachers 4.0 4 4 4 5 4 25 25
Classroom Avg 20.8 22.0 24.0 20.8 19.4 22.8 22 22

C t YTD Offi i l 9/07Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Bryan 17 24 19 20 19 22
17 24 21 20 18 20
17 25 20 20 20 21
17

Total Students 68 73 60 60 57 63 381 2 379 381
Total Teachers 4 3 3 3 3 3 19 19
Classroom Avg 17.0 24.3 20.0 20.0 19.0 21.0 20 20

Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 C-K C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 C-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cather 27 15 14 22 20 23 24 24 22 25 23 23
16 13 24 23 24 25 23 21

Total Students 27 31 27 22 20 23 48 47 46 50 46 44 431 15 416 431
Total Teachers 2 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 21 21.0
Classroom Avg 27.0 15.5 13.5 22.0 20.0 23.0 24.0 23.5 23.0 25.0 23.0 22.0 21 21

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/07

K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment
Cody 15 19 20 15 14 13 5

17 15 20 16 15 14 6
7

Total Students 32 34 40 31 29 27 18 211 -21 232 193
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 15 12
Classroom Avg 16.0 17.0 20.0 15.5 14.5 13.5 6.0 14 16

Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cottonwood 20 18 18 20 23 25
18 20 18 18 22 25
19 19 20 20 23

Total Students 57 57 56 58 68 50 346 5 341 346
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 2 17 17
Classroom Avg 19.0 19.0 18.7 19.3 22.7 25.0 20 20

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/07

K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment
Disney 23 22 15 16 17 17 7

25 23 13 16 17 14 5
16 19

Total Students 48 45 44 32 53 31 12 265 -6 271 253
Total Teachers 2 0 2 3 2 3 2 2 16 0 14Total Teachers 2.0 2 3 2 3 2 2 16.0 14
Classroom Avg 24 23 15 16 18 16 6 17 18

54



SpEd Class
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/07 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment SPED
Ezra Millard 19 17 21 21 20 22 5

19 20 20 19 19 20 6
19 20 20 22 20 20

21
Total Students 57 57 61 62 59 83 11 390 -6 396 390
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 4 2 21 19
Classroom Avg 19.0 19.0 20.3 20.7 19.7 20.8 6 19 21

Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Harvey Oaks 16 22 27 25 23 23
16 22 25 25 23 23
16

Total Students 48 44 52 50 46 46 286 7 279 286
Total Teachers 3 2 2 2 2 2 13.0 13
Classroom Avg 16.0 22.0 26.0 25.0 23.0 23.0 22 22

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/07

K 1 2 3 4 5 Program Total Change Change Enrollment
Hitchcock 21 12 13 24 24 20 9

13 15 15 9

Total Students 21 25 28 24 24 35 18 175 -16 191 157

Total Teachers 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 11.0 9
Classroom Avg 21.0 12.5 14.0 24.0 24.0 17.5 9.0 16 17

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/07

K 1 2 3 4 5 Program Total Change Change Enrollment
Holling Heights 17 22 22 23 22 20 9

22 22 20 23 22 19 2
22 20 19 24 21 18

Total Students 61 64 61 70 65 57 11 389 -57 446 378
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 20.0 18
Classroom Avg 20.3 21.3 20.3 23.3 21.7 19.0 5.5 19 21

Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Montclair 19 22 19 17 18 20 24 24 20
19 20 18 17 16 19 25 23 2119 20 18 17 16 19 25 23 21

19 13 23 21
24 20
24
23

Total Students 38 42 37 53 34 52 49 141 82 528 -22 550 528
Total Teachers 2 2 2 3 2 3 2 6 4 26 26
Classroom Avg 19.0 21.0 18.5 17.7 17.0 17.3 24.5 23.5 20.5 20 20

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/07

K 1 2 3 4 5 Program Total Change Change Enrollment
Morton 22 21 16 20 18 23 6

20 18 19 22 18 23 6
14 22 24 17 25

Total Students 42 53 57 66 53 71 12 354 -11 365 342
Total Teachers 2 3 3 3 3 3 2.0 19 17.0
Classroom Avg 21.0 17.7 19.0 22.0 17.7 23.7 6.0 19 20

Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Neihardt 14 20 22 21 24 21
16 20 20 21 25 21
17 20 22 20 25 22
17 20 20 21 22
16 21 21 22

Total Students 80 101 105 105 74 86 551 -17 568 551
Total Teachers 5 5 5 5 3 4 27.0 27.0
Classroom Avg 16.0 20.2 21.0 21.0 24.7 21.5 20 20

Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M-4 Total Change Change Enrollment

Norris 20 14 19 19 17 21 8 21 17
21 15 20 21 17 21 13 18 18

21

Total Students 41 29 39 40 34 42 21 60 35 341 -1 342 341
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 19.0 12.0
Classroom Avg 20.5 14.5 19.5 20.0 17.0 21.0 10.5 20.0 17.5 18 28

Reagan 19 23 16 20 22 16
19 21 23 21 21 21
19 14 16 21 22 21
20 22 23 20 19
20 22 24
19

Total St dents 116 102 102 82 84 58 544 73 471 544Total Students 116 102 102 82 84 58 544 73 471 544
Total Teachers 6 5 5 4 4 3 27.0 27.0
Classroom Avg 19.0 20.0 19.5 20.5 21.0 19.3 20 20

55



Sped Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 Program Total Change Change Enrollment

Reeder 21 22 24 26 22 22 8
20 22 24 25 21 22 7
20 23 24 25 21 15

22
Total Students 61 89 72 76 64 59 15 436 60 376 421
Total Teachers 3 4 3 3 3 3 2.0 21.0 19.0
Classroom Avg 21.0 22.3 24.0 25.3 21.3 19.7 7.5 21 22

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/07

K 1 2 3 4 5 Program Total Change Change Enrollment
Rockwell 17 16 17 15 15 16 5

17 17 17 15 15 17 6
17 16 18 15 16 9

Total Students 51 49 52 45 46 33 20 296 -75 371 276
Total Teachers 3.0 3 3 3 3 2 3 20.0 17.0
Classroom Avg 17.0 16.3 17.3 15.0 15.3 16.5 6.7 15 16

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/07

K 1 2 3 4 5 Program Total Change Change Enrollment
Rohwer 24 21 20 22 20 21 8

24 21 21 22 20 21 9
24 21 17 19 21 21

19 21 16 21

Total Students 72 82 79 79 82 63 17 474 -27 501 457
Total Teachers 3 4 4 4 4 3 2 24.0 22
Classroom Avg 24.0 20.5 19.8 19.8 20.5 21.0 8.0 20 21

Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Sandoz 17 19 16 18 23 18
17 18 17 18 24 18
17 18 19 19 18

Total Students 51 55 52 55 47 54 314 4 310 314
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 2 3 17 17
Classroom Avg 17.0 18.3 17.3 18.3 23.5 18.0 18 18

Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Upchurch 21 19 23 21 18 26
21 19 23 22 17
21 20
16

Total Students 79 58 46 43 35 26 287 287 N/A 287
Total Teachers 4 3 2 2 2 1 14 14
Classroom Avg 19.8 19.3 23.0 21.5 17.5 26.0 21 21

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/07

K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment
Wheeler 21 20 21 19 20 21 9

17 19 20 21 20 20 8
21 15 21 20 22 23 4
22 21 19 19 18 23
17 20 21 20

Total Students 98 95 102 99 80 87 21 582 -1 583 561
Total Teachers 5 5 5 5 4 4 3 31 28
Classroom Avg 19.6 19.0 20.4 19.8 20.0 21.8 7.0 19 20

Current YTD Official 9/07
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Willowdale 16 24 23 20 21 25
18 23 23 23 22 26
18 23 23 21 22 24

21
Total Students 52 70 69 85 65 75 416 -4 420 416
Total Teachers 3 3 3 4 3 3 19.0 19
Classroom Avg 17.3 23.3 23.0 21.3 21.7 25.0 22 22

SpEd
Elementary Totals Cluster Current YTD Official 9/07
Grade K 1 2 3 4 5 M-1 M-2 M-3  M-4 M-5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment
Students 1640 1603 1626 1591 1503 1485 66 75 60 55 62 155 9921 135 9786 9766
Teachers 80.0 79.0 78.0 75.0 72.0 69.0 23.0 476 453.0
Classroom Avg 20.5 20.3 20.8 21.2 20.9 21.5 6.7 21 22

SpEd Current YTD Official 9/07
6 7 8 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 248 270 240 11 758 -20 778
Beadle MS 296 298 239 29 833 45 788
Central MS 254 224 261 28 739 -11 750
Kiewit MS 299 293 334 5 926 15 911
North MS 246 244 240 13 730 13 717
Russell MS 280 291 281 8 852 0 852
MS Alternative 0 5 14 19 -3 22
Totals 1623 1625 1609 94 4857 0 39 4818

North HS 590 582 634 629 31 2435 -63 2498
South HS 521 527 496 545 19 2089 -18 2107
West HS 515 532 557 510 24 2114 -3 2117
Millard Learning Center 0 0 15 77 92 7 85
Totals 1626 1641 1702 1761 74 6730 0 -77 6807

Contracted SPED 41 4 37
Young Adult Program 58 8 50
Total District Enrollment 21607 0 109 21498

56



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Phase I of the Career Compensation Model, 2007-08

Meeting Date: September 2, 2008

Department: Human Resources

Title and Brief Description: Phase I of the Career Compensation Model, 2007-08

Action Desired: Report Only

Background: During the first strategic planning session in 1990, the idea was
born to compensate all employees for assisting students to meet
desired levels, standards or outcomes. These levels and standards
have now become known as Essential Learner Outcomes (ELO’s).
As a result of these efforts, Phase I of the CCM became a reality in
the fall of 1998. Since 1998, there have been many changes in the
model, and we have now arrived at guidelines we believe fit well
with our goals for student success. We now have the ability to
gather baseline performance data on each child in our schools. We
also have the ability to compare that baseline data with a
“predicted” level of district achievement. In order to meet the
qualifications of the CCM, each school must show that they met or
exceeded the predicted level of achievement on a majority of the
assessments, or have an average gain score that is a positive
number. If a school does not meet those criteria, they have the
option of appealing to the Group Incentive Board (made up of a
cross section of employees). The only exceptions to the above
goals are the MLC, Hitchcock preschool program, and YAP. Each
of these groups writes a goal that is pre-approved by the Group
Incentive Board. This year we had all Millard schools and the
above 3 groups participate. All met or exceeded their goals.
Overall, 98% of our salaried staff participated and 87% of our
hourly staff participated.

Options/alternatives
Considered: NA

Recommendations: Report Only

Strategic Plan
Reference: N/A

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N/A

Timeline: September 2008

Responsible
Persons: Dr. Kirby Eltiste and Jon Lopez

Superintendent’s Signature: __________________________________

57

sphelps
Keith's signature



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: ACT and SAT Scores

Meeting Date: September 2, 2008

Department: Planning & Evaluation

Title and Brief
Description: This report presents results from 2007-08. Findings are

presented across years, for the district as a whole and for
individual schools.

Action Desired: Approval ___ Discussion X Information Only ____

Background: The district composite average is 23.3. Individual schools
range as high as 23.7 (North) for the composite score, with
reading and math showing the highest subscores in all high
schools. An 8-year trend line shows a steady increase in
scores.

Options/Alternatives N.A.
Considered:

Recommendations: There continues to be a gap in performance between
students who report taking the “core” curriculum – as
defined by ACT – and those reporting less than core. The
percentage of students reporting core curriculum is up by 15
percent from last year. The performance gap is 2.9
compared to 2.8 last year.

Strategic Plan
Reference: 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N.A.

Timeline: High schools and the curriculum can begin using results
immediately.

Responsible
Persons: Jon Lopez

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________

58

sphelps
Keith's signature



ACT & SAT 

RESULTS 

2007-08 
 
 
 
                                                                               

 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                     
 
 

Planning, Evaluation & Information Services Dept. 

SEPTEMBER 2008 
 

59



 

 
INTRODUCTION 

 
 
The American College Test (ACT) and the Scholastic Aptitude Test (SAT I) are widely 
used college admissions tests that are typically taken by high school juniors and seniors.  
Both tests measure skills that students have learned in high school and that they will 
need for academic success in college. 
 
 
ACT 
 
The ACT is a 2 hour and 55 minute test that includes 215 questions.  In 1989 a revised 
version of the ACT was introduced which reflected the changes in high school 
curriculum.  The old test included the four areas of English, mathematics, social studies, 
and natural science.  The new ACT Assessment includes: 
 
 English 
 75 items/45 minutes 
 
 Mathematics 
 60 items/60 minutes 
 
 Reading 
 40 items/35 minutes 
 

Science Reasoning 
40 items/35 minutes 

 
In addition, students receive subtest scores for each of the four tests. 
 
The ACT Writing Test, which measures skill in planning and writing a short essay is 
optional. 
 
The ACT standard score scale ranges from 1 to 36. 
 
  
SAT I 
 
The SAT I is a 4 hour mixed method test that includes written response as well as 
multiple-choice questions that measure developed verbal and mathematical reasoning 
abilities as well as writing. The SAT I scores are intended to supplement the secondary 
school record and other information about the student in assessing readiness for 
college-level work.  Student performance on the SAT I is reported on a scale of 200 to 
800 on each sub-test. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 

60



Average ACT Scores by Level of Academic Preparation

   Number      Percent English Mathematics Reading  Sci Reason   Composite
   core  /  Less core / Less core / Less core / Less core / Less core / Less core / Less

Local
2002-03 685 427 59 37 23.6 20.2 23.6 20.8 24.0 21.1 23.3 21.2 23.8 21.0
2003-04 663 392 59 35 23.9 20.1 24.1 20.6 24.0 21.1 23.7 20.5 24.0 20.7
2004-05 682 406 58 34 23.7 20.7 24.2 21.0 24.1 21.6 23.6 21.5 24.0 21.4
2005-06 631 424 55 37 23.9 21.1 24.2 21.5 24.4 21.6 23.8 21.6 24.2 21.6
2006-07 564 434 47 36 24.2 21.3 24.7 21.6 24.6 21.9 24.4 21.7 24.6 21.8
2007-08 797 409 63 32 23.9 20.7 24.4 21.2 24.5 21.9 24.0 21.4 24.3 21.4

State
2002-03 11087 4860 67 29 22.2 19.1 22.4 19.5 22.9 20.1 22.5 20.1 22.6 19.8
2003-04 11022 4766 67 29 22.2 19.0 22.4 19.5 22.8 20.2 22.4 20.1 22.6 19.8
2004-05 10913 4397 67 27 22.4 19.3 22.5 19.7 22.8 20.1 22.4 20.1 22.6 19.9
2005-06 10133 4517 64 28 22.5 19.7 22.4 20.0 23.0 20.6 22.5 20.5 22.7 20.3
2006-07 9539 4458 59 28 22.7 19.8 22.6 20.1 23.2 20.8 22.6 20.5 22.9 20.4
2007-08 11934 3944 72 24 22.6 19.5 22.6 19.7 23.2 20.6 22.5 20.1 22.8 20.1

National
2002-03 667526 410753 57 35 21.4 18.5 21.6 18.9 22.2 19.7 21.7 19.5 21.8 19.3
2003-04 661290 405328 56 35 21.5 18.7 21.7 19.1 22.3 19.8 21.7 19.6 21.9 19.4
2004-05 658430 406763 56 34 21.6 18.8 21.7 19.1 22.2 19.8 21.7 19.6 21.9 19.5
2005-06 647298 413888 54 34 21.6 19.0 21.8 19.4 22.3 20.1 21.7 19.7 22.0 19.7
2006-07 659603 444906 51 34 21.7 19.2 21.9 19.6 22.4 20.2 21.8 19.8 22.0 19.8
2007-08 873743 431748 61 30 21.6 18.8 21.9 19.3 22.3 19.9 21.6 19.4 22.0 19.5

Average ACT Scores for All Graduates

Number English Mathematics Reading Sci Reason Composite
Local
2002-03 1167 22.2 22.5 22.8 22.4 22.6
2003-04 1126 22.4 22.8 22.9 22.5 22.8
2004-05 1186 22.5 22.9 23.1 22.8 23.0
2005-06 1156 22.8 23.1 23.3 22.9 23.1
2006-07 1197 23.0 23.3 23.4 23.2 23.4
2007-08 1265 22.8 23.3 23.6 23.1 23.3

State
2002-03 16646 21.2 21.4 22.0 21.7 21.7
2003-04 16523 21.2 21.5 22.0 21.6 21.7
2004-05 16220 21.4 21.6 21.9 21.7 21.8
2005-06 15892 21.5 21.6 22.2 21.8 21.9
2006-07 16137 21.8 21.8 22.4 21.9 22.1
2007-08 16573 21.8 21.8 22.5 21.9 22.1

National
2002-03 1175059 20.3 20.6 21.2 20.8 20.8
2003-04 1171460 20.4 20.7 21.3 20.9 20.9
2004-05 1186251 20.4 20.7 21.3 20.9 20.9
2005-06 1206455 20.6 20.8 21.4 20.9 21.1
2006-07 1300599 20.7 21.0 21.5 21.0 21.2
2007-08 1421941 20.6 21.0 21.4 20.8 21.1

2

61



2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

MILLARD 22.6 22.7 22.6 22.8 23.0 23.1 23.4 23.3

NEBRASKA 21.6 21.7 21.7 21.7 21.8 21.9 22.1 22.1

NATIONAL 21.0 20.8 20.8 20.9 20.9 21.1 21.2 21.1

19.5
20

20.5
21

21.5
22

22.5
23

23.5
24

ACT Composite Scores Over 8 Years 
Millard, Nebraska, and National

30%

35%

40%

Percentage of Millard Students 
Scoring in Top Quartile Nationally

English Math Reading Science Comp

Millard 22.8 23.3 23.6 23.1 23.3

Nebraska 21.8 21.8 22.5 21.9 22.1

National 20.6 21.0 21.4 20.8 21.1

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

Comparison of the ACT Average Scores 
with Other Groups 2007-08

Scores range from 1-36

2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08

Percentage 34% 34% 34% 29% 36% 37% 38%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

3

62



2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-2008

percentage 86.14% 81.06% 82.80% 83.20% 82.20% 77.58% 80.23% 78.47%

72.00%

74.00%

76.00%

78.00%

80.00%

82.00%

84.00%

86.00%

88.00%

Percent of Millard Seniors Taking the ACT 
Over Eight Years

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Millard 63 61 59 59 58 55 47 62

Nebraska 67 66 67 67 67 64 59 72

National 60 58 57 56 56 54 51 61

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Percent ACT Tested Students Who Have 
Taken Core Curriculum

1265 Seniors from the class of 2008 took the ACT

4

63



English Math Reading Science Composite

2007-08 23.4 23.6 24.0 23.3 23.7

2006-07 23.8 23.9 24.1 23.6 24.0

2005-06 23.6 23.7 23.9 23.6 23.8

2004-05 23.2 23.6 23.8 23.2 23.6

2003-04 23.0 23.6 23.2 22.9 23.3

22.2
22.4
22.6
22.8
23.0
23.2
23.4
23.6
23.8
24.0
24.2

North High

23

South High

ACT Average Scores for Five Years

English Math Reading Science Composite

2007-08 21.6 22.7 22.8 22.5 22.5

2006-07 21.8 22.4 22.4 22.5 22.4

2005-06 21.8 22.2 22.5 22.1 22.3

2004-05 21.7 22.0 22.3 22.1 22.1

2003-04 21.3 21.8 22.1 21.9 21.9

20.5

21

21.5

22

22.5

English Math Reading Science Composite

2007-08 23.1 23.4 23.8 23.3 23.5

2006-07 23.0 23.4 23.4 23.2 23.4

2005-06 22.6 22.9 23.1 22.8 23.0

2004-05 22.4 22.6 22.9 22.7 22.8

2003-04 22.8 22.5 23.2 22.4 22.9

21

21.5

22

22.5

23

23.5

West High

5

64



2006-07 2007-2008

North High 86.64% 82.91%

South High 69.94% 69.35%

West High 93.47% 90.81%

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

Percentage of Seniors Taking 
the ACT Test by School 2006-08

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

North High 53 51 51 40 59

South High 60 62 60 51 61

West High 66 62 55 52 67

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Percentage of ACT Tested Students 
Who Have Taken Core Curriculum

6

65



English Math Reading Science Composite

Core or More 23.9 24.4 24.5 24 24.3

Less than Core 20.7 21.2 21.9 21.4 21.4

Total Group 22.8 23.3 23.6 23.1 23.3

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Millard Public School Results

English Math Reading Science Composite

Core or More 22.6 22.6 23.2 22.5 22.8

Less than Core 19.5 19.7 20.6 20.1 20.1

Total Group 21.8 21.8 22.5 21.9 22.1

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Nebraska Statewide Results

7

66



68

53

77

60

82

61

68

60

70

80

90

Percent of Students Meeting ACT College Readiness Benchmark Scores  
2007-2008

ACT College Benchmark score is the minimum score needed on an ACT subject-area test to indicate 
a 50% chance of obtaining a B or higher, or about a 75% chance of obtaining a C or higher in the 

corresponding credit-bearing college course.

22

43

53

2827

49

3536

44

0

10

20

30

40

50

All Four English Math Soc Science Biology

National All Testers (N=1,421,941) Nebraska All Testers(N=16,523) Millard All Testers (N=1,265)

8

67



Critical Reading Math Writing

Millard 590 606 585

Nebraska 581 585 567

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

SAT SCORES 2007-08

Nebraska 581 585 567

National 502 515 494

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Students 144 147 180 176 152 157 127 106

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200

Number of Millard Students 
Taking the SAT Over Eight Years

8.37% of the 2008 graduating Seniors took the SAT

9

68



Critical 
Reading

Math Writing

North High 605 627 590

South High 574 598 602

West High 578 585 574

535

555

575

595

615

635

2007-08 Scores 

Critical 
Reading

Math Writing

North High 586 620 580

South High 538 566 541

West High 595 605 584

535

555

575

595

615

635

2006-07 Scores

SAT Scores by School 

49

15

42

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

North High South High West High

Number of Students Taking the SAT 
by School 2007-08

10

69



2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Millard 581 589 593 577 606 599 606 606

Nebraska 568 570 578 576 579 583 585 585

National 514 516 519 518 520 518 515 515

450
470
490
510
530
550
570
590
610
630
650

SAT MATH Scores 
Over Eight Years

520
540
560
580
600
620

SAT CRITICAL READING Scores 
Over Eight Years

2006 2007 2008

Millard 579 575 585

Nebraska 566 562 567

National 497 494 494

450
470
490
510
530
550
570
590
610
630
650

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Millard 574 576 600 566 597 593 582 590

Nebraska 562 561 573 569 574 576 579 581

National 506 504 507 508 508 503 502 502

440
460
480
500
520
540

11

SAT Writing Scores

70



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: State Writing Assessment Results 2007-08

Meeting Date: September 2, 2008

Department: Planning and Evaluation

Title and Brief
Description: Results of the 2008 State Writing Assessment indicate a

high level of achievement in writing by Millard students
scoring above the state average in all grade levels.

Action Desired: Approval ___ Discussion X Information Only ____

Background: Students in grades 4, 8 and 11 are required to participate
in the state writing each spring as a requirement for
STARS assessment for the Nebraska Department of
Education and for federal No Child Left Behind.

Options/Alternatives
Considered: N/A

Recommendations: Use data immediately to help determine effectiveness of
the district writing programs.

Strategic Plan
Reference: Supports the mission of the district.

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N/A

Timeline: N/A

Responsible
Persons: Jon Lopez

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________

71

sphelps
Keith's signature



 
Millard Public Schools 

Summary of State Writing Assessment Results 
2007-08 

 
Each spring during the months of January and February 2008, all students in grades 4, 8 
and 11 participated in the required state-wide writing assessment.  Students in 4th grade 
wrote in the Narrative Mode, 8th grade wrote in the Descriptive Mode, and 11th grade 
wrote in the Persuasive Mode.  The assessments were scored by educators from outside 
of the district and reported directly to the Nebraska Department of Education.  Scores are 
made available to the public in the annual state report card, and are included in the data 
used to determine Adequate Yearly Progress (AYP) for federal No Child Left Behind 
requirements for students in 4th and 8th grades.  This report indicates the percent of 
Millard Students who demonstrated proficiency on the State writing Assessment.   
 
Table 1:  Percent of students demonstrating proficiency that is required in order to meet 
No Child Left Behind AYP.    
 

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 
4th grade                  72% 4th grade                  81% 4th grade                  94% 
8th grade                  71% 8th grade                  81% 8th grade                  97% 
11th grade                75% 11th grade                83% 11th grade                97% 
 
 
Chart 1: Percent of Millard Students Demonstrating Proficiency compared to the State 
 

 
 
 

72



 
 
Chart 2:  Percent of Millard 4th Grade Students Demonstrating Proficiency by Race 
 

 
 
Chart 3: Percent of Millard 8th Grade Students Demonstrating Proficiency by Race 
 

 
 

Chart 4: Percent of Millard 11th Grade Students Demonstrating Proficiency by Race  
 

 

73



 
Chart 5:  Percent of Millard 4th Grade Students Demonstrating Proficiency by subgroup 
 

 
 

Chart 6:  Percent of Millard 8th Grade Students Demonstrating Proficiency by subgroup      
 

 
 

Chart 7:  Percent of Millard 11th Grade Students Demonstrating Proficiency by subgroup      
 

 

74


	Budget Hearing Document
	Proof of Publication
	Budget Notifications
	Acknowledgment of Receipt
	Board Packet September 2, 2008
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Board Minutes August 11, 2008
	E.2. Special Meeting Minutes August 18, 2008
	Financials
	E.5. Committee Meeting Minutes August 18, 2008
	G.1. Approval of Policy 3131 - Support Services - Employee Travel and Reimbursement
	Policy 3131
	G.2. Approval of Policy 5490 - Pupil Services - Use of Alcohol and other Drug Testing Technology
	Policy 5490
	H.1. Approval of Rule 5490.1 - Pupil Services  - Use of Alcohol and other Drug Testing Technology
	Rule 5490.1
	H.2. First Reading of Policy 6610 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Multicultural Education 
	Policy 6610
	Rule 6610.1
	H.3. Approval of Emergency Medical Team (EMT) Service at Non-Varsity High School and Middle School Football Games
	H.4. Approval of "Q" Street Widening Project Easements & Deeds
	H.5. Personnel Actions:  Amendment to a Continuing Contract, Resignation, and New Hires
	Amendment to a Continuing Contract
	Resignation
	New Hires
	I.1. Enrollment Report
	I.2. Career Compensation Model
	I.3. ACT and SAT Results 2007-2008
	I.4. State Writing Assessment Results 2007-2008



